
 

   

Board of Trustees Meeting 
Tuesday, August 23, 2022 
BCF Conference Room 
208 E 4th 

 

 

Board of Directors  

 

Officers 

 

    Mize, 2018-22 

       Chair 

   Mueggenborg, 2000 

       Vice Chair 

     King, 19-22 

       Treasurer 

    Lindblom, 2017-23 

       Secretary 

    

  

Directors 

    Beierschmitt, 2017-23 

    Bode, 2020-23 

    Collins, 2021-24 

    Freeman, 2017-23 

    Kirkpatrick, 2020-23 

    Hay, 2019-22 

    Ingram, 2022-25 

    Johnson, 2019-22 

    Saddoris, 2020-23 

    

       

                  Staff 
 
 
      Laura Jensen, 

Executive Director  
 

Anne Swearingin, 
Finance and 

Accounting Manager 

AGENDA 
 
Call to Order  
 
Declaration of Conflicts of Interest  
 
Consent Agenda  
 

1. Minutes of June 2022 – Mize (pg. 2-3) 
   2.   Financial Report – Spencer King (pg. 4-12) 
   3.  Disbursement Report – Spencer King (pg. 13) 
 

 
Office Report- Jensen 
 
Education Minute - Jensen 
 
Old Business 
 

1. Reaffirm Dora Randolph Memorial Field of Interest, Carol Lewallen Memorial  
Scholarship, Dillahunty-Williams Support Future Funds 

2. Conflict of Interest Policy (pg. 14-18) 
 
New Business 
 
         1.  BCF Pool Election Form (pg. 19) 
         2.  Conflict of Interest and Contact forms annual renewal 
         3.  Letter of Signers to BancFirst account (pg. 20) 
         4.  Executive Director Goals – Refer to Board Portal 
         5.  Nondiscrimination Policy for review (pg. 21)  
          
Other Business 
 
         1. Executive Session 
         2. Board retreat date 
 
Next Board Meeting:  October 25, 2022, 12 noon,  Location – To be determined 

 



Minutes 

Mueggenborg called the Bartlesville Community Foundation Board of Trustees meeting to order 

at 4:08 p.m., Tuesday, June 28, 2022. Present were Shoemake, Kirkpatrick, Hay, Mueggenborg, 

Beierschmitt, Lindblom, Freeman, Collins, King, Ingram, Mize. Staff – Wilt, Jensen, Swearingin 

Absent:   Saddoris, Johnson, Bode. 

Declaration of Conflicts of Interest:   Collins declares conflict with Brush Up Bartlesville. 

Involves city employees. 

Consent Agenda 

Minutes of April 2021 -   Mueggenborg 

Special Meeting Minutes June 13th - Mueggenborg 

Financial Report – King 

Disbursement Report – King 

Motion to approve consent agenda presented with date correction for Special Meeting on 

agenda by Freeman. Second from Kirkpatrick. Motion carries all in Favor. 

Office Report 

Jensen presented office report as represented on the Board Portal. 

Agenda suspended 

FY2020-2021 Audit – Robert Haley presented the BCF audit for year ending June 30, 2021. 

Motion to accept audit report as presented was made by King. Second from Beierschmitt. 

Motion carries all in favor. 

Return to Agenda 

Education Minute – Jensen presented cards for all fund types as reference for board. Information 

is also on the Board Portal. 

2



Old Business 

Motion to reaffirm Brush Up Bartlesville FS Fund was made by King. Second from Hay. 

Motion carries. Collins abstained from vote. 

Motion to approve Donor Advised Fundholder Agreement as presented in previous meeting 

was made by Beierschmitt. Second from King. Motion carries all in favor. 

New Business 

Oglesby Civil Defense Volunteer Fire Department – Brief discussion on history of fund. 

Motion to approve request by the fund advisors to disburse their funds and close was made 

by Mueggenborg. Second by Kirkpatrick. Motion Carries all in favor. 

King presented the FY2022-2023 proposed budget. King answered questions from board. Brief 

discussion followed. Motion to approve budge as presented was made by Ingram. Second 

from Mueggenborg. Motion carries all in favor. 

Jensen presented the Conflict-of-Interest Policy for the board to review. Board was asked to 

review the policy and to let Jensen know of any changes needed. Policy will be discussed further 

at the August meeting. No action taken at this time. 

Other Business 

Board members were each given a $2,000 voucher to designate a donation to a local non-profit 

organization of their choice. Jensen asked to have the cards returned no later than June 30. 

Beierschmitt made the motion to move into executive session. Second from King. Motion 

carries all in favor. 

Executive session discussion and votes are on file in the payroll files for each employee. 

Motion to exit executive session was made by Ingram at 5:03. Second from King. Motion 

carries all in favor. 

Meeting adjourned at 5:04 p.m. 

The next meeting will be held Tuesday, August 23, 2022, at the BCF office. 
Respectfully submitted by Kristen Lindblom 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



Copyright ©2014 by the Council on Foundations, www.cof.org. 
This sample document is being provided for informational purposes only as part of your participation in the 
Community Foundations National Standards program and is not to be shared without the permission of the Council 
on Foundations.  Use of the sample document does not create an attorney-client relationship, and the information 
provided is not a substitute for expert legal, tax or other professional advice tailored to your specific 
circumstances.  The information may not be relied upon for the purposes of avoiding any penalties that may be 
imposed under the Internal Revenue Code. 

Sample Conflict of Interest Policy 

I. Introduction 

The Foundation is a publicly supported charitable foundation primarily serving the communities 

of the Bartlesville, OK area and is dedicated to its mission of expanding private philanthropy in 

those communities. The Foundation operates within the public trust and strives to maintain the 

highest code of conduct in all of its operations. 

The Foundation recognizes that it can best accomplish its mission when the board of directors, 

volunteer committee members, staff and other groups associated with the foundation represent 

the diverse interests, cultures, occupations and expertise of the community. Thus, the 

Foundation recognizes that members of the board of directors and others representing or 

affiliated with the Foundation will from time to time face possible conflicts of interest or 

situations in which the appearance of conflict of interest could be detrimental to the Foundation 

and the communities it serves. The Foundation adopts this Policy in recognition of its 

responsibility to the public trust, in recognition of the importance of fairness and objectivity in 

its conduct of business, as a means of assuring that every decision of the Foundation is made in 

the interest of the Foundation and the communities it serves and as a means of publicly codifying 

its expectations of board, staff and volunteers, and others serving the Foundation. 

This Conflict of Interest Policy applies to all persons holding positions of responsibility and trust 

on behalf of the Foundation, including but not limited to members of the board of directors, 

members of board committees who are not members of the board, volunteer committee 

members, members of the boards of supporting organizations to the Foundation, and members 

of the Foundation staff (hereinafter “members”). This Policy shall be provided to each member 

at the time that he or she is asked to serve the Foundation and renewed annually at the first 

board meeting of the fiscal year. 

II. General Policies and Expectations 

Members of the foundation are expected to commit themselves to ethical and professional 

conduct. This includes the proper use of authority and appropriate decorum. 

14

http://www.cof.org/


Page 2 

Members must represent unconflicted loyalty to the interest of the Foundation. This 

accountability supersedes any conflicting loyalty such as that to advocacy or interest groups, 

business interests, personal interests or paid or volunteer service to other organizations. It also 

supersedes the personal interest of any staff or volunteer member acting as a consumer or client 

of the foundation’s services. 

It is the policy of the Foundation that no member shall derive any personal profit or gain, directly 

or indirectly, by reason of his or her service to the Foundation. There may be no self-dealing or 

any conduct of private business or personal services between any member and the Foundation 

except those conducted in an open and objective manner to ensure equal competitive 

opportunity and equal access to information. 

Board members or volunteer committee members must not use their positions to obtain 

employment in the Foundation for themselves, family members or close associates. Should a 

board or volunteer committee member desire employment, he or she must first resign. 

Board and volunteer committee members may not attempt to exercise individual authority over 

the policies and operations of the Foundation except through their roles as voting members of 

the board or volunteer committees. Staff members may not attempt to exercise individual 

authority over the policies and operations of the Foundation except through their specific job 

responsibilities and established supervisory structure. 

Board members and volunteer committee members in their interaction with the press and the 

public must recognize the inability of any individual member of the board or committee to speak 

for the Foundation except as expressly authorized by the board chair. Staff members in their 

interactions with the press and the public must recognize the inability of any individual staff 

member to speak for the foundation except as expressly authorized by the president. 

The Foundation will comply with both the letter and spirit of all public disclosure requirements, 

including the open availability of its Form 990 tax returns. However, all members must hold 

strictly confidential all issues of a private nature, including, but not limited to, issues related to 

private businesses, contributions from individuals, businesses and other private entities, and all 

personnel matters. 

III. Policies on Conflict of Interest 

In conducting the affairs of the Foundation, duality or conflict of interest shall be presumed when 

a person to whom this policy applies or a member of his/her immediate family serves as a trustee, 

officer, staff member or holder of more than 10% of corporate stock of an affected organization 

or firm; has a formal affiliation or interest in an affected organization or firm; or could expect 

financial gain or loss from a particular decision. 

15



Page 3 

Before a staff, board or volunteer committee member begins his or her service with the 

Foundation, he or she shall file with the president of the Foundation a list of his or her principal 

business activities, as well as involvement with other charitable and business organizations, 

vendors or business interests, or with any other associations that might produce a conflict of 

interest. 

In addition to the disclosure required by the previous paragraph, each member is under an 

obligation to the Foundation, to his or her fellow staff or volunteers, and to the community 

served by the Foundation to inform the Foundation of any position he or she holds or of any 

business or a vocational activity that may result in a possible conflict of interest or bias for or 

against a particular grantee, action or policy, at the time such grant, action or policy is under 

consideration by the board or any volunteer committee of the Foundation. Any duality or 

possible conflict of interest on the part of any member shall be disclosed to the chair of the board 

(in the case of volunteers) or the president (in the case of staff members) and made a matter of 

record as soon as the issue in question is raised and a possible conflict is known. 

When the board, committee or staff is to decide upon an issue about which a member has an 

unavoidable conflict of interest, that member shall physically absent herself or himself without 

comment from not only the vote, but also from the deliberation, unless directly requested by the 

chair of the board or relevant committee to provide factual information or answer factual 

questions that may assist the board or committee in making a wise decision. In no case shall that 

member vote on such matter or attempt to exert personal influence in connection therewith. 

Disclosure and abstention shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting(s) at which the issue 

is discussed and decided. 

In any situation not specifically covered by the previous sections of this policy, members shall 

consider carefully any potential conflict of their personal interests with the interests of the 

Foundation and refrain from any action that might be perceived as an actual or apparent conflict 

of interest. 

IV. Examples of Appropriate Actions Under This Policy 

Example 1. An officer or other paid employee of a bank or other financial institution who is also 

a board or finance committee member of the Foundation should inform the chair of the board 

of his or her potential conflict of interest and abstain from discussing or voting on the retaining, 

employing or dismissing of his or her financial institution as an investment manager of the 

foundation. 

Example 2. A board or distributions committee member who is also a board, staff or committee 

member of a proposed grantee should inform the chair of his or her conflict of interest and 

16



Page 4 

abstain from voting on or discussing any motion for or against the proposed grant, except as 

expressly requested by the chair to provide factual information or answer factual questions that 

would be useful to the board or committee in making its decisions. If several grants are being 

voted upon concurrently, the Board or committee member must voice his or her conflict of 

interest to the chair before the vote so that a vote on the grant with which there is a conflict may 

be taken separately. 

Example 3. A Board or Committee member whose personal financial interests could be positively 

or adversely affected by the Foundation’s accepting, holding or disposing of a particular gift from 

a donor or by knowledge of the gift should inform the chair of his or her potential conflict of 

interest; refrain from seeking, obtaining or reviewing non-public information about the gift; and 

abstain from discussing or voting on acceptance of the gift. 

V. Duties of the Board Chair and the President 

The chair of the board shall be responsible for the application and interpretation of these policies 

as they relate to board members, volunteer committee members or the president. The president 

shall be responsible for the application and interpretation of the above policies as they relate to 

members of the Foundation’s staff. 

VI. Duties of Members 

Each board member has the affirmative responsibility to report to the board chair (in the case of 

concerns related to board or committee members or the president) or to the president (in the 

case of concerns related to members of the staff) any and all knowledge of any action or conduct 

that appears to be contrary to this Policy. 

VII. Disclosure 

I have listed below my principal business activities and those of my immediate family and those 

charitable organizations that employ me or a member of my family or for which one of us serves 

as a member of the board. 

Name of Organization Nature of Affiliation 

17



Page 5 

Name of Organization Nature of Affiliation 

I hereby certify that I have read, understood, and agree to the Foundation’s policies as described 

in this statement and that the information given above is complete and accurate to the best of 

my knowledge. 

Date/Name (printed or typed) 

Signature 

This Conflicts of Interest Policy was approved by the Foundation’s board of directors on: 

________________________ 

Date 

18



BCF Staff Initials: _____________ Date:___________ 

Three options are available for qualifying funds. Requirements include: 

• A fund’s balance may not be split between options 

• Fund balances are reviewed quarterly. Funds that do not have a qualifying balance will have one quarter 
to raise the balance or be moved to a model that meets the minimum balance requirement. Funds that 
dip below the minimum balance because of market fluctuations will have two quarters to increase the 
fund’s balance will be reviewed and moved prior to the next election period (July 1 – June 30). 

• Funds may make a deposit election on July 1 or at the time of fund initiation 

• Funds shall remain in elected model no less than 12 months so long the balance requirements are met 
Details on each option are provided below. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
I (the fundholder) elect the below investment option for the fund named above. 

Model 1: Money Market 
• Minimum balance of the fund as described in the fund agreement’s fee schedule 

• This is recommended if the fundholder’s intentions are to grant the balance down to the 
fund minimum on a regular basis or the intended lifespan of the fund is less than one year 

• Funds in this model do not earn interest and are not invested 

Model 2: Aggressive Growth and Income Pool 
• ~60/40 equity/fixed income split 

• $2,000 minimum balance to remain invested 

• Funds in this model are subject to the fluctuations of the market. Gains/Losses, Interest, and 
dividends are reflected on the fund’s quarterly statements 

Model 3: Conservative Growth Pool 
• ~70/30 equity/fixed income split portfolio 

• $100,000 minimum fund balance to remain in this option 

• Funds in this model are subject to the fluctuations of the market. Gains/Losses, Interest, and 
dividends are reflected on the fund’s quarterly statements 

Investments will be made in accordance with the Oklahoma Uniform Prudent Investor Act. In addition to providing 
both current income and future growth to accommodate the Foundation’s administrative and mission needs more 

than annual fundraising plus normal inflation. Fundholders should recognize short-term fluctuations may cause 
variations in performance, the BCF evaluates performance from a long-term perspective with reference to a 10-

year market cycle. 

Investment services are provided by Arvest Wealth Management in accordance with an Investment Policy Statement. We are happy to provide 
portfolio details for Model 2 & 3. 

BCF does not provide investment services or investment advice. 

Fundholder Sign/Print Name: ____________________________________ Date: ____________ 

Fundholder Sign/Print Name: ____________________________________ Date: ____________ 

19



July 27, 2022 

BancFirst 
Christi Lakey 
300 SE Frank Phillips Blvd 
Bartlesville, OK 74005 

Christi, 

Signers for the BCF/BPSF checking account at BancFirst should include the following individuals: 

• Cana Mize – BCF Board Chair 
• Debbie Mueggenborg – BCF Board Vice Chair 
• Spencer King – BCF Board Treasurer 
• Kristen Lindblom – BCF Board Secretary 
• Cindy Wray – BPSF Board Treasurer 
• Todd Cone – BPSF Board Chair 
• Harry Deathe – BPSF Past Treasurer 

Please let me know if I can offer any additional information. 

Thank you, 

Laura Jensen 
Laura Jensen 
Executive Director 

20



Nondiscrimination Policy 

Employment 

The Bartlesville Community Foundation follows an equal opportunity employment policy and 

employs personnel without regard to race, creed, color, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, 

sexual orientation, gender expression, age, physical or mental ability, pregnancy, veteran status, 

military obligations, and marital status. This policy applies to hiring, internal promotions, training, 

opportunities for advancement, and terminations. 

Grantmaking 

No person in the United States shall, on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, religion, 

national origin, sex, gender identity (as defined in paragraph 249(c)(4) of title 18, United States 

Code), sexual orientation, marital or parental status, political affiliation, military service, physical 

or mental ability, or any other improper criterion be excluded from participation in, be denied 

the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole 

or in part with funds made available by the community foundation, and any other program or 

activity funded in whole or in part with funds appropriated for grants, cooperative agreements, 

and other assistance administered by the community foundation. 

Approved by the Board of Directors:  ____________________ 

DATE 

21


	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Agenda Aug22.docx
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Minutes Jun22.docx
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\BCF Jun22 FS.pdf
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Attachments\Copy of Confilicts of Interest Policy - DRAFT.docx
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Attachments\Investment Pool Election Form.docx
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Attachments\BancFirst SignersUpdate.pdf
	G:\My Drive\BCF\BCF Board Packets\BCF Board Packets FY2023\August 2023\Attachments\DRAFT Nondiscrimination Policy.docx

